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Parole Board,
120 Tremont Street, Boston 8, December 19, 1962.

To the HonorableSenate and House of Representatives.

Under the provisions of Resolve 99 of 1962, the Parole Board has
been authorized and directed to make an investigation and study
relative to the advisability of restricting parole in certain cases con-
victed for the second offenses of certain gambling laws. Further,
that the Board make investigation and study of the procedure, rules
and regulations used by county commissioners in the exercise of their
parole authority.

After an extensive and comprehensive investigation and study,
including the holding of a public hearing the Parole Board wishes
to submit its findings and recommendations as follows.

That existing statutes, relating to the release on parole by County
authorities of prisoners in our several Houses of Correction, now
have sufficient restrictions with proper and reasonable checks and
balances to extend to these prisoners the opportunity of parole con-
sideration, and at the same time, safeguard the public. The Board
therefore, is not making any proposed changes in the procedure,
rules and regulations presently used by the County Commissioners
in the exercise of their paroling authority.

Relative to making mandatory, the serving of two thirds of a
sentence by prisoners serving a term on second conviction of cer-
tain gambling offenses, it is the considered opinion of the Board
that parole restricted according selective crimes rather than by
evaluating the merits of the individual after investigation and care-
ful study is not conducive to good parole procedure.

Jk If, in the judgment of the General Court, the paroling of offenders
of certain gambling offenses would be more effectually

administered through a state-wide agency with standardized pro-
cedure presently available, the Parole Board is willing and is favor-
ably disposed to assume this added responsibility.

Ci)e Commontoealtl) of Massachusetts
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Attached is a copy of the minutes of the Public Hearing, held by
the Board on the subject matter.

Respectfully submitted,

CORNELIUS J. TWOMEY,
Chairman.

(Mrs.) MARY P. KIRKPATRICK,
Member.

JOHN T. LANE,
Member, A

PATRICK A. MENTON,
Member.

(Mrs.) TILLIE A. ZELESKY,
Member.
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Paroi.e Board,
120 Tremont Street, Boston 8

The Parole Board has been authorized and directed by the Gen-
eral Court to make an investigation and study relative to the feasi-
bility of changing the law relative to the mandatory time to be
served by prisoners convicted of certain Gambling Offenses and
certain other related matters. (See Resolve 99 of 1962.)

The Parole Board will hold a public hearing on November 23,
1962, at 10.30 a.m. in Room 207, State House, Boston, Mass., at
which time opportunity will be given to all persons who wish to
be heard, and in so doing assist the Parole Board in its recom-
mendation.

CORNELIUS J. TWOMEY,
Chairman, Parole Board.

Following is a copy of Chapter 99, of the Resolves of 1962.
Resolved, That the parole board is hereby authorized and directed to make an

investigation and study of the subject matter of current house document numbered
1097, relative to providing that persons convicted for second offenses of certain
gambling laws shall serve at least two thirds of the sentence imposed therefor. In
the course of its investigation and study said board shall also investigate and study
the procedure, rules and regulations usei
of their parole authority. Said board si
of its investigation and study and its rec
together with drafts of legislation neces
effect by filing the same with the clerk o
the fourth Wednesday of December in ti

;d by county commissioners in the exercise
hall report to the general court the results
commendations, if any, in relation thereto,
ssary to carry such recommendations into
)f the house of representatives on or before

current year.

ft
Please Post

Approved May 22, 1962

Cije CommonUiealtl) of 90a0sacfnisctts

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING.
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HELD AT THE STATE HOUSE

(Room 207) November 23, 1962, at 10.30 a.m

Cornelius J. Twomey, Chairman.
Patrick A. Menton, Member.
John T. Lane, Member.
Tillie Zelesicy, Member.
Mary Kirkpatrick, Member.
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Mr. Twomey. I will declare the hearing open. The Parole Board has
been authorized and directed by the General Court to make an investiga-
tion and study relative to the feasibility of changing the law relative to
the mandatory time to be served by prisoners convicted of certain Gam-

m bling Offenses and certain other related matters as contained in Resolve,
No. 99 of 1962.

I will waive the reading of the Resolve since I believe everybody here is
aware of the contents. We will hear the proponents of the Resolve first.
Is there anyone present who wishes to speak in favor of this? Any pro-
ponents in favor of this Resolve?

Daniel F. Driscoll, Captain, Massachusetts State Police. Commanding
Officer, Criminal Investigation Bureau.

Commissioner Frank S. Giles has directed me to appear here and report
him in favor of the bill relative to persons convicted of second offenses of
certain gambling laws shall serve at least two-thirds of the sentence
imposed. Law enforcement agencies have found it extremely difficult in
obtaining necessary evidence to make arrests and obtain ■convictions of
higher ups in illegal gambling rackets in Court.

Experience has shown that the payment of fines, no matter how large,
have been ineffective in causing the bookie to change his occupation.

Mr. Twomey. Is that all, Captain?

A. You can go into any phase of it you want. The records of the
bureau show three convicted bookies, arrested by the State Police, were
released by the County Commissioners one was released after serving
18 days of a 3 months’ sentence; one released after serving 18 days of a
6 months’ sentence and the third after serving about 12 days of a 3 months’
sentence. It is our belief that when the Legislature provided mandatory jail

of certain gambling convictions that it did not intend to have the
*violators released without being punished for the offense. When you con-

sider the cost of making investigations and trials in the District Courts
and Superior Courts being borne by the taxpayers he is interested in being
fully served, and plus the fact that the premature release of convicted
bookies tends to have a demoralizing effect on law enforcement in its war
against gaming activities and organized crime.

Clie Commontoealtl) of Qiasoacfjuoetts
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Mr. Twomey. Thank you, Captain. Any questions?

Mr. Menton. You mean by that you think that justice would better
be served if the Parole Board handled these releases rather than the
County Commissioners?

\. Yes, I would

Mr. Twomey. Is there anybody else who wants to speak in favor of the
Resolve, or any part thereof? If not then we will hear from those opposed,then we will hear from those opposed.

Adnah H. Harlow, Sheriff of Plymouth County and President County
Commissioners and Sheriffs Association.

Mr. Chairman. At the outset, I have been directed by that Association
to record the Association as opposed to that much of this Resolve as relates
“investigating the procedure and rules and regulations used by county
commissioners in the exercise of their parole author!t

In other words we are opposed to any change in the present law con-
cerning releases by the County Commissioners. In behalf of that Associ-
ation I should like to be recorded as opposed to this change in the law

Speaking personally I certainly would not approve of any such situa
tion that Captain Driscoll has described about these releases for gambling
offenses. I think one would have to know more about the particulars
involved before making sound judgment as to the fairness of these re-
leases. I have never seen any such thing occur in Plymouth County, at
least. I feel that the case the Captain refers to was one of those excep-
tions. The County Commissioners can make immediate releases but must
have the recommendation of the Probation Officer of the Court from which
a person is convicted, and with the approval of the Judge of the Court
before release can be effected. So that certainly in this particular case
if from a District Court must have had the full approval of the Court
which gave the sentence. If a Superior Court these releases could not have
been effected without approval of the Superior Court Probation Officer and
District Attorney in whatever county the offense took place. I don’t
think onus should be put on the County Commissioners for those releases
because I think in most instances the County Commissioners concur with
the approval of the Probation Officer and presiding Justice and is very apt
to go along with the recommendations and grant releases. It is quite rarcjft
when they don’t do that. lam in favor of leaving things as they are. l”
think there could be some improvement of sentences over one year or
under one year. The present law does not make available an opportunity
to take care of any emergency matters that do arise. In sentences of from
one month to twelve months no provision is made to take care of hardship
cases, illness. Having in mind the first instance, the County Commis-
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sioners under the present law have no authorization to release anyone
until six months or less or more than six months remain in the sentence.

At the most a person could not have more than six months to go to be
released by the County Commissioners since they have no authority beyond
that. This has proved helpful. These people are short timers and I think
therefore as short timers can’t be looked upon as serious type offenders
where longer sentences are involved. I should like to say at the present
time before the County Commissioners can act it requires the approval of
the Probation Officer in a District Court and the Judge and Probation of
the Superior Court and the District Attorney. I think the institutional
conduct should be one of very strong consideration that should be con-

sidered in the matter of parole. While this has not been the procedure it
could be and may be in some conditions. I think that the approval of the
Master of a House of Correction should be as mandatory as that of the
Probation Officer and particularly the Judge who in most instances saw
the man for fifteen minutes. I say this because the matter was brought
to my attention by the Justice on numerous occasions that they see no
reason for change in the present law because all they did was pass sentence
on information available, particularly in the District Court.

We don’t have to concern ourselves with the release of a drunk serving
30 days. We all agree that 30 days isn’t going to cure him and if he may

possibly be in a better position in five days I don’t think anybody ought to
criticize his release. lam most interested in what the Captain said —we
all know the difficulties involved in gambling offenses and while we did not
come prepared to speak on that phase
should be the desire of the General C
laws on gambling. Igo along person

, certainly I have no objection if that
ourt; no objection to more stringent
ally with Captain Driscoll insofar aspersor

the first phase of this investigation concerned. I hope I have made
yself clear this is my personal op on that the Master of the House of

Correction be required to approve
Por example, during the time the la
very serious infraction of the priso
Court on his release; the situati
County Commissioners and the pet
conduct in a House of Correction,

he request before release is possible,
was pending an inmate committed a
rules; approval came back from the

on was immediately reported to the
tion ovas denied. I think an inmate’s
his industry, should be of great con-

sideration. I don’t think without that an individual should be granted
parole. I think it should be a mandai
#> Mr. Twomey. Thank you, Sheriff

ry requirement to pass judgment

Mr. Lane. I don’t get this, the mi datory require f the approval
of the Master before release. You will agree that the major institutions
are more important in a measure than the county institutions and no such
power is given to the Warden or Superintendent. Why should that power
be given to the Master to approve releases?
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Mr. Twomey. Do I understand that this is to amend the law for sen-
tences under a year?

A.. Right.

Q. It is not to conflict with the authority of the Board?
A. Most certainly it would not conflict with the authority of the Board.
I know of a case where the Master of a House of Correction for good and

justifiable reason was very much opposed to release of a certain inmate.
Considerable pressure was being brought to bear for his release and despite
adverse recommendations of the Sheriff that inmate was released. That
was an isolated case, but is one of those things that could become
common. During the past two years of releases through the State Parole
Board I can think of no instances when I reported certain matters to them
where they have paroled any individual that because of his institutional
conduct I did not think should be paroled. I feel very strongly about that.

Mr. Menton. No inmate can be released solely on the basis of his
institutional conduct.

Mr. Twomey. You believe that they would like to be relieved of this
obligation?

A. That is a pretty hard question to answer. I think, in my opinion
yes.

Mr. Twomey. Do you think we might ask the Administrative Group
of the District Court to investigate that phase and see if it is so?

A. It might be a very fine thing to do.

Mr. Twomey. I am of the opinion that from what I have heard, some
time off the record statements, they would also like to be relieved of the
obligation. They seem to feel that they do not have enough knowledge of
the men?

A. I think I can say in most trials the judges do obtain some knowledge
of the cases.

Mr. Lane. Would you further say where the District Courts now are
taking over powers that were formerly Superior Court powers 6 man
jury is another reason why the lower Courts might want to be relieved
of that responsibility? A

A. I think perhaps Sheriff Tulloch might have something to say about
it. We made a study two years ago concerning institutional conduct and
industry. We came up with a system we think would be quite workable,
to have on the staff of every county institution a pre-parole and post-
parole officer. We feel this would be very useful. I think from the stand-
point of short-termers, the situations that do constantly arise I do not
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think in your office in Boston you would be able to cope with the type of
emergencies we have.

Mr. Menton. That was just the point I was going to ask you about.
I understand that there are too many agencies involved in getting a man
out of a County institution on parole. Approval of the Judge in some
instances; the Probation Officer; the District Attorney in another instance
and if they are not available it delays the procedure. You have to have
approval of every one of these agencies and this is one of the things the
Legislature is interested in.

4 A. That difficulty has been encountered with persons who have been
committed to Suffolk and transferred to Plymouth they have to initiate
the petition and many times the petition comes back either granted or
denied sometimes long after the individual has been discharged from the
institution.

Mr. Menton. Many members of the Legislature have told me.

A. I know of no other place where that existed

Mr. Mentoiv it true they are transferred from Suffolk to your
institution because of crowded condit is I assume in Suffolk County Jail?

A. That isn’t what the Justices tell me

Mr. Twomey. You talked about r
the obligation to make recommendatic

lieving the Justices of the Court of
ns. We might talk to the Advisory

Committee on District Courts as to their feeling on that particular matter.
Mr. Menton. Some complain there is some delay if the Judge or Pro-

bation Officer is on vacation?

A. I don’t think so

Mr. Menton. I have heard it did happen. One instance where there
was a death in the family whether he could be released without approval
of the Judge?

A. I know he could be

Mr. Menton. If one of the partie;
A. I don’t know of any situation.

involved went on vacation?

Mr. Menton. Members of the Legisl ature have told me that it does
happen?

A. I don’t know of any situation
Officer where there isn’t somebody
of a District Attorney, our District

in the absence of a Judge or Probation
who could act in the case. In the case
Attorney spent two months in Europe

but the First Assistant took care of things
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Mr. Menton. Could anybody take the place of the Justice?
A. Yes, another Justice.

Mr. Twomey. Doesn’t specify it must be the sentencing Justice?
A. No. In fact in one case I would like to have seen a parole granted;

the Judge who sits each day sentenced the man to 6 months and he had
served 4 and 1 thought he might be paroled. The Probation Officer ap-
proved but the presiding Justice said no. The Justice had no personal
knowledge of the case.

Mr. Menton. I think there is an opinion around that it must be the
lentencing Judge; ™

A. I don’t think the law provides for that at all. A special justice when
not actually assigned to Court and on duty is ordinarily pretty much the
same as any member of the bar. He has no authority unless actually
assigned.

Mr. Lane. Special Judges are Lay Judges and are only Judges when
sitting and have no other power unless he is called to sit for that day?

A. I think you are right

Mrs. Kirkpatrick. Did I understand there is no rule to guide you
regarding anyone who wants to be paroled. The petition starts with the
inmate?

A. That is correct

Mrs. Kirkpatrick. So if an inma
he will stay there?

has not enough initiative personally;e

A. He could.
rented exactly the same?Mrs. Kirkpatrick. Everyone isn’t treated c

A. Everybody is eligible for parole. If sentenced for six months he
eligible the day he comes in. The only ones I know who don’t petition
might be the prisoner sentenced the first of the year for 3 months for
vagrancy and he isn’t interested in parole but only in what the weather
will be the first of March. But in no other instance do I think there is any
problem involved at all.

Air. Twomey. Thank you, Sheriff.
LT. Harrington, Jr., 5G North Main Street, Fall River, Chair-

man, Board of Commission

I subscribe to the remarks made by Sheriff Harlow. I know in my dis-
trict the Probation Officer always places great stress on the Sheriff’s recom-
mendation, particularly while the person has been in his custody and in
view of the Sheriff’s closeness to the man. We all realize this and I don’t
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think it is necessary to summarize it in the law. I don’t feel it is necessaiy
to make any changes in this law. We all place great stress on the Sheriff’s
recommendation. I have only been a Commissioner for six years and
before that I had occasion to look into matters as an attorney representing
clients. This system was in effect when I came on the Board and many
years before. That of all things in County Government this is a system
which has been given greatest merit in serving the public interest and
protecting it. They did a very good job of setting up a system of checks
and balances. There are two strong features; the Probation Officer and
presiding Justice and District Attorney have to concur. The same officials

4who have to concur are local individuals who did have a knowledge of the
individual situation and readily accepts this information to pass upon.
Despite some of the comments here I agree that the Probation Officers
bear a big burden. In my County they are a good group and investigate
all matters. However, I think there is a benefit about having the District
Attorney and Justices concur for this reason. It tends to prevent that one
case where the Judge might have in mind that he is just not going to have
every man come out on parole and would be opposed. That it wasn’t
one of the local cases. I think as a matter of courtesy it should be done.
That the District Attorney and presiding Justice must concur. In my
County there has been no complaint from the public that this system was
not operating effectively. The prisoner is referred and told the proper
procedure for getting parole consideration. Talked with Probation Officers
and found no difficulties in this area. I had occasion to read and talk over
reports by Probation Officers concerning some particular aspect of the case.
In my County, as I am sure in all other counties, the chance of an inmate
who actually needs someone to look after his interest not being considered
is rather remote. The forms are made available to all prisoners. We have
to approve the investigation. We approve every investigation. Everyone
who petitions we approve the investigation. We feel the prisoner has the
right to have his case investigated and place great reliance on the Pro-
bation Officer’s report, the District Attorney and the sentencing Judge.
Speaking for myself as a lawyer, I feel it is a good system and is used
without any difficulty. It is one that clients have few complaints about
and in this area. The one thing I have not had to tamper with in six
years has been the system of parole as it operates in Bristol County. If
the law is satisfactory to me, God knows it is a law I wouldn’t change.v \ AO O CAj UiOi Civ UWX \ J JX IU J V vA

V'felt it incumbent upon me to say
Shhriff-Elect Edward Dabrowski i here today and I feel he concurs,

very much in favor. Pie has co-op-
iate gets a fair hearing.

Also Sheriff Patrick Dupuis would bx
erated in every wav in seeing the inn

Mr. Lane. You are not opposed
the Judges for their approval?

to having the matter submitted to

A. No,
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Mr. Lane: Taking it away from the Judges?
A. Frankly, I am. Having that as a safeguard is a salutary thing.

Gives me a chance to review the case if there is a very narrow margin when
sentences are involved. Perhaps because as an attorney as well as Com-
missioner lends stress to the system as far as our position with the public.
When we say that the Judge and Probation Officer both agree and we after
investigation of records see no reason why we should oppose this release.
In some matters whether approved or not we are able to say if there is con-
currence in the matter it merits consideration and is a safeguard to the
system. I cannot think of any situation in our County where there has
been a significant disagreement between the Probation Officer and thefe
Judge. I think they work very closely and in most cases the individual””
has been before the Judge a matter of perhaps fifteen minutes and the
Judge requests the Probation Officer to make an investigation and if the
Probation Officer thinks it is a good risk I know the Judge goes along.

I remember a case when,the Judge before reaching a decision talked
with the Probation Officer in his chambers. This is the type of safeguard
we want. I can’t remember any problem as described by the Captain.
I have never seen one in my County. I feel the system is good and pro-
vides a check when we need a check. It may seem cumbersome but it is
not. I have the forms in my office. If anybody wants one they come down
and pick it up and I will sign as one of the Commissioners; take it to Com-
missioner Michaels; go see such and such a Probation Officer, etc., there
is no lack of co-operation and the system seems to work out very well. I
talked to a few organizations and found out they didn’t know or realize
there actually wr as a safeguard having the Judge, District Attorney and
Probation Officer in agreement. They thought the County Commissioners
just had this authority to do this on their own. From the standpoint of
people involved wr e should keep the procedure just as it is. Abuses of the
system have never been pointed out to me. If there are abuses and if
there are special types of situations such as gambling, I feel it can be han-
dled on special basis without any necessity of additional legislation as far
as the County parole system is concerned.

Mr. Lane. As a member of the Bar you realize that the function of the
judiciary is not one for the Commissioners. The Judge gives a sentence,
the man goes from the judiciary to the executive department which de-
partment you represent. When you go back to the judiciary and givA
them the function of the Commissioners you are usurping the power of
Executive department?

A. I am not in a position to quarrel with you in this matter.
I do know I have talked with special Justices and some of the full-time

Justices in Court in regard to their problems. While the matter of sentenc-
ing is a function for the Judge, I am sure there are Judges at the time they
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are sentencing are always as much concerned with the rehabilitation and

position in the community involved in sentencing. Many cases if the Judge
knows somebody on the outside who will take care of the individual instead

of sentencing him will give him a suspended sentence. When an individual
comes before a Judge they are concerned with the disposition and I feel

personally that the Judge is happy to have behind him a reasonable parole

system thatwill enable somebody to take care of the fellow. If it is neces-
sary to send him to a County institution many times he is just interested
in the case. Some of the Judges operate on that theory. All I can say,
from talking with the Judges, they are certainly not opposed to this sys-

»tern. They have the Probation Officer, they have a say so. The fact that
"the Judge has to concur gives standing to the Probation Officer. He has

to get a sound group to go along with him. In my opinion it gives the whole
system dignity and force and effectiveness.

Mr. Menton. These parolees released by the County parole authorities,

do they have any supervision plan?

A. They are followed up by individual Probation Officers.

Mr. Menton. Probation Officer follows them through?

A. Every once in a while we receive a request from the Probation Officer
to revoke the parole which we have granted and we comply with the request.

Mr. Menton. I have heard from a pretty good authority —it may be

they don’t know the truth that there is no supervision to speak of of
county parolees. You say it isn’t true?

A. Here I can only speak for my County. I think our County parole
must have the same problem of a large case load. We have talked about
additional Probation Officers.

Mr. Menton. We know all Probation Officers are overloaded?

A. All of our Probation Officers are handling more cases than they
should be. Within those limits I believe our Probation Officers follow

them up. Whether it is a type of formal follow up which gets dictated on
paper and in the files, I don’t know 7 . Most of the people released are in the
neighborhood in these particular areas follow up may be informal but I
believe supervision and follow up within these limits is as adequate as the

jjState provides.
Mr. Menton. lam going to assume you know the functions of a la-

role Officer of the State Parole Board as distinguished from Probation
Officers?

A. I have had some contacts with them.
Mr. Menton. The Parole Board has 30 Parole Officers who have from

70 to 100 cases at various times. They go into homes and visit employers.



HOUSE - No. 3350. (Mar.16

»

My understanding is that the Probation Officers can’t do that because
they have hundreds of cases. I ask you as an attorney and County Com-
missioner whether or not in your opinion a Parole Officer could supervise
more completely a parolee than a Probation Officer? I understand the
Probation Officers have the men come in to see them at the Court House
or Police Station?

A. You mean a Parole Officer on the State payroll as against a Proba-
tion Officer on County payroll. This would depend upon certain facts.

Mr. Twomey. It depends upon the personnel, whether or not we have
enough Parole Officers or Probation Officers.

A. I think they could be more effectively supervised at a local level
through Probation Officers in our area. They have available at their
fingertips a vast amount of information. He knows those who are going
to do wrong and he is there. The Probation Officer, if something happens,

they don’t hesitate to go to the police and say the job has all the ear-
marks of my probationers. Go pick them up. A person on the scene in
the local area will do a better job than somebody further away.

Mr. Menton. As a practicing lawyer you talk about checks and bal-
ances. As a general rule do you feel generally that the sentencing Judge
and the District Attorney and the Probation Officer who makes a recom-
mendation on the sentence to the Judge can be objective at all times when
the question of releasing a man is brought before them?

A. That is a question I can’t answer. Nobody wants to see a man in
jail, but the Probation Officer, District Attorney and Judge, with respect
to release of a man, they are all going to work together.

Mr. Menton. Yes, but both have made a recommendation to the
Judge whether it happens to be in a case in District Court or Superior
Court. And you are asking the individual who made the recommendation
to change his mind and the Judge acquiesces to it. Say he is serving 6
months and petitions for parole in 3 months. The matter goes back to
the Probation Officer, he probably made the recommendation that the
Judge give him 6 months. lam wondering if both can be as objective as

rd party who had not taken part in the sentencing?

A. Certainly they can’t. But it just doesn’t seem to happen and I
believe men of good will just don’t want to keep an individual in jail if
there is a reasonable possibility of his being rehabilitated and being re-
leased without danger to the public. In terms of the objective what we
are trying to accomplish is first to rehabilitate people; keep the system
close to the people who are going to be rehabilitated. Nobody is able to
convince the County Commissioners for political reasons, to release a pris-
oner if there is any objection from the Probation Officer and the District
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Attorney — they have to agree. I think it is working fine; protects the
public and gives the inmate a real shot at getting out if they can prove
their rehabilitation and won’t come back. It is working like a charm.
In terms of the objective and the way the system is operating you can’t
find anything here that would be considered a danger.

Mr. Twomey. Thank you, Mr. Harrington

Donald P. Tulloch, Sheriff, Barnstable County

May I say it makes my task no easier to get up after Sheriff Harlow
and Commissioner Harrington because they have so well outlined the

* situation.
I think one of the basic principles of our governmental system is that

those things which can be as well handled or better handled at the local
level should remain there. That is the basis of our way of life. In respect
to Barnstable County concerning the release of prisoners from the Barn-
stable House of Correction or anticipated release on application for release
the County Commissioners talk the situation over very carefully. First
with the Sheriff who attends their meetings regularly. From this they get
the background of the man’s behavior and attitude, etc., while in the in-
stitution or since he was committed. In Barnstable County our County
Commissioners are elected from various areas of the County. If one is
from a different section of the County almost invariably one of the County
Commissioners will be very familiar with the local environment of the in-
mate; possibly may be even more familiar than the inmate himself. Also
at least one of the County Commissioners is very familiar with the Pro-
bation Officers in the County from which the inmate comes; the welfare
people; local Court people; Police Department, etc. All the officials from
this area. There is a rather definite knowledge there to start with in the
investigation of the case and it has always been my feeling that after a
consideration of a parole by a Board of County Commissioners there has
been a pretty thorough investigation into all areas and based on a knowl-
edge that is pretty close to the inmate himself. I think this has been gone

into very thoroughly by Sheriff Harlow and Commissioner Harrington.
Upon the occasion of consideration of the last change in the laws relative

to the control of parole by the County Commissioners it was suggested
by the Sheriffs a basic change that we felt might do this job better than

fany other way —it wy as suggested by the Sheriffs that there should be an
officer assigned to each House of Correction under the direction of the
Sheriff and whose responsibility would be first of all the working up of
case histories of each inmate in the institution; working with that inmate
while he is incarcerated in the institution; studying his potentialities, etc.,
while he is in the institution and then co-operating with the County Com-
missioners, sitting wr ith them, upon his consideration for parole and after
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parole has been granted going forth into the community and acting in the
capacity of a parole visitor.

We felt that this would be the ultimate. This would be it as regards a
perfect system because there is great merit to the actual knowledge of this
inmate before he is released and then following him out in the community;
great merit in a continuation of the comfort of this official supervision -

from the point where the man comes into the institution; during the time
of treatment there and on into the community. I would say that this is a
system which possesses a great deal of merit.

Mr. Twomey. Don’t you think it would be an improvement in your
institution if there was an Institutional Parole Officer not only with theft,
County Commissioners but with the Parole board?

A. I do.
Mr. Twomey. I certainly think the Parole Board would be able to

recommend such an individual so that you would have them. One of the
troubles is that you are lacking such a person right now?

A. I always felt this was a great need in the Houses of Correction
Mr. Menton. How do you propose to handle inmates paroled who

don’t live in your community?
A. I think the problem exists as far as Massachusetts is concerned with

inmates who are from other States. It should be worked out on a compact
basis.

Mr. Menton. And statewide?
A. Yes.
Mr. Menton. Do you have many inmates sent to your institution who

come from other counties, those with a year or more?

A. I don’t know that the percentage is any greater in my institution
than any other.

Mr. Twomey. Thank you, Sheriff.
Thomas B. Brennan, County Commissioner, Middlesex County.

I have had quite a few years’ experience handling parole. While every
situation that is handled by home ruling is open to improvement, I still
think we have a pretty good setup in the parole system as it is now op-ftl
erating. The question was asked as to how parole is arrived at. In
Middlesex County every Sunday the inmates are allowed to appear at the
office of the Master and make out a request for parole. Are they in-
dividually told that when they come in? I don’t know. If not there are
enough “guard house lawyers” who will let them know; or the prison
grapevine. When Ido come up to the institution nobody knows when I
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am coming until lam going in the gate. I intend to interview one or two
and by the time I get into the office have about six requests; by the time
I get out many more. No one knows how the word gets around.

The petition has four pages. The first page is filled out with the name;
address and crime for whch sentenced, court, sentence, etc.; and reason
for wishing to be paroled. This is signed by the inmate. Immediately
following is the recommendation of the Sheriff or Master to give his record
in the institution as to work and conduct; if he is placed in segregation
for fighting, etc., that is carried on it, too. Then on page 2at the top there
is a request to investigate which the Probation Officer of the Court is given.
A request to investigate means parole. This is signed by the County

4Commissioner on the bottom of page 2 says “recommendation” and
it is either “I recommend” or “I don’t recommend” the release and is
signed by the Probation Officer the Chief Probation Officer of Superior
Court or the Probation Officer of District Court before the recommenda-
tion is signed by the District Attorney or Justice of the District Court
does not necessarily have to be the presiding Justice. The acting Justice
may sign. There is no cause or reason for delay. The same goes for the
Probation Officer, etc. Then it comes back to the Commissioners and
on page 3is the actual release. This is after it has gone to the Court for
the recommendation of the Probation Officer and District Attorney and
if the recommendation is favorable then in most instances the County
Commissioners sign again on page 3. If we wish to make a parole then we
have made out a “filler” signed by the Commissioners. Some parts go
to the institution-—that part signed by the Commissioners; the large
part is given to the man to indicate his release so that if he is stopped on
the street by a police officer he has his ticket of release. Actually when a
man is on parole he is still serving time on the outside. The unsigned part
is kept with the four-page petition and remains in the Commissioner’s
office. The front signed part is retained in the institution and represents
the inmate who is serving time, but on the outside. That is the method
and every man has an opportunity and a man would have to be actually
stupid to say that he did not have the right to petition. In our experiences
with the system we find that the Judges and Probation Officers are very,
very human beings. I cannot go along with the idea that the Judges are
disinclined to co-operate. I know every one of them personally; sat in
conference with them and talked many hours with them and I know in

psome instances a man is given a sentence of 6 months in order to shake the
man up. A man has been given opportunity after opportunity; warned,
etc., and finally they bring him in and feel he has to be shaken up and give
him a 6 months’ sentence: a non-support case —so he goes into jail for
6 months has to conform to the rules and so he thinks about it. The
matter comes up for parole. The Probation Officer gets the request and
talks it over with the Judge and they say perhaps the man has learned
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A

his lesson so they give him a chance to prove it. I still believe that the
name “House of Correction’ means what it says and that these people
are put in there with the hope they will be corrected and helped and in
most instances I think they are. So I think the present system is fine just
as it is. It is not perfect because it is conducted by human beings, and take
it from one human being to another.

Mr. Lane. Under the rules of the Parole Board we see a man from 30
to 60 days prior to the eligibility for parole. Approximately how soon do
you see a man before an eligibility date?

A. When I get a request I make it my business to see him as soon as
possible. We have no set rules.

Mr. Lane. Have you paroled many men who had passed their elig
bility date; or after he has done one-half his time?

A. Actually the date might be considered by the Judge. We try to
think in terms of “have the ends of justice been served?”; is a hardship
being created for the family; is society being protected by having this man
in or is he going to be a danger to society; and many things that are per-
haps unspoken. These are the questions we take into consideration.

Mr. Menton. Do you have an accepted set of rules and regulations
among the County Commissioners?

A. Among the Commissioners of each county?

Mr. Menton. No. Is there an over-all set of rules and regulations
throughout the State?

A. In talking with other Commissioners we all seem to be operating on
the same plan.

Mr. Menton. But nothing in writing? Do you have rules governing
your own County?

A. No, I do not subscribe to rules for parole because we are dealing with
individuals.

Mr. Menton. You said on this application for parole there is a section
where you as County Commissioner request an investigation. Do you
refuse investigation in many case

A. Not in many.

itances where a man would petition
and you would refuse him at the first

Mr. Menton. But there are in;
your Board for parole consideration
step?

A. We would not sign the request perhaps because of his record in
the institution.
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Mr. Menton. Then he does not have a right to a hearing?
A. That is his right because we have received the petition and the

records indicate he does not warrant it at the time the papers are being
forwarded to the Court.

Mr. Menton. At that point do you have the probation records before
•?you

A. No

Mr. Menton. So that there might be a possibility that the Probation
Officer would feel differently if you had let it go as far as an investigation?

A. Possibly. One Commissioner states he will sign every parole petition
comes before him.

Mr. Menton. I believe Mr. Harrington said they let them go to the
point of investigation but in your County two or three Commissioners
might protest?

A. flight

Mr. Menton. And that would be
records?

based very likely on the institution

A. Yes, some of them we know a;
individual is considered.

recidivists and repeaters but every

Air. Menton. The case of the man you refuse to let go to investiga-
tion by the Probation Officer, the Judge, he does not get a full hearing?

A. I think he gets fair consideration. It might be something similar to
the case Capt. Driscoll brought up where the District Attorney would not
approve a parole. We would be putting him on the spot if we referred it
to him.

Mr. Menton. We are all on the spot every time we make a decision?
A. I know that.

Mr. Twomey. Thank you, Commissioner,
Oscar J. Cahoon, Commissioner, Barnstable County.
I would just like to back up everything that has been said here this

morning. When we are elected we don’t look forward to serving as a

r~ parole officer but find it extremely interesting. There is somebody on the
Commission who knew all the defendants; have had a great deal to do
with the records. I think we have done a good job. We give every con-
sideration we possibly can to the applicant. We work in very close co-
operation with the Probation Officer and Air. Diniz, our District Attorney.
I have talked on the phone at great length with Air. Diniz, the District
Attorney, and especially with the Probation Officers. I can think of only
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one instance where a violator came back. In this instance it so happened
that the father recommended he be brought in for non-support; the father
and son didn’t get along too well and had an argument.

Thank you for your time.
I think the system works. I have been there only four years but find

on the local level you know most of the defendants.

Mr. Menton. Do you refuse any applicants applying by not investi-
gating?

A.. We have and in that instance the Sheriff’s recommendation was so

poor and his behavior so bad we felt it wouldn’t be proper. We have sent
word back to prisoners to improve their work and behavior, and send iiw
another form and we would give it consideration. Escapees serving time
on old sentences and have put in for parole and we have been told of the
bad behavior of the prisoner and we have sent word back to improve their
behavior and show some progress. We have worked with the Chaplains.

Mr. Twomey. Thank you, Commissioner.
Thomas Herlihy, County Commissioner, Franklin County.
The facts as stated by Commissioner Gaboon I have found to be the

same in my County. We have no difficulties —no problems beyond what
you would expect to find in a situation involving people. We subscribe
completely to what he has to say. We are opposed to any change in the
County system in which it now exists.

Mr. Menton. In your County do you refuse a request in some cases
for an investigation?

A. In two years, no.

Charles W. Hedges, Sheriff, Norfolk County.
The subject matter has been pretty well covered. However, I would

like to present to the Board a letter dated November 23, 1962, from the
Norfolk County Commissioners Association stating their opposition to
House Bill No. 1097 as far as it concerns the rules and regulations used by
county commissioners in the exercise of their parole authority. We feel
the rules and regulations used by the Board every consideration is given
to the inmates of houses of correction.

The matter of supervision has bothered us. The U.P.A. received about
$20,000from the Community Fund and use money to aid released prisonersJ|
We considered submitting a petition to the United Fund hoping possibly”
we could be the recipient of some money raised locally to provide super-
vision to inmates released. We think some of the money used by the
U.P.A. could might well be given to us to assist in supervision. There are
600 to supervise in Quincy District Court. There are others more qualified
than I to say the local people are better qualified to be supervisors of our
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inmates. If possible, in view of the fact that as Sheriff we have to live with
these inmates and petition the County Commissioner and your Board for
release that when you reply to this communication you might add, if
you will, if you think it proper the word “Deny” or “Reserve” because
we are instructed by you, Mr. Chairman, to inform the inmate of your
decision. We tell them we have a communication from the Parole Board
and your parole is denied. The first thing he wants to know is, WHY?

Mr. Menton. We didn’t consider him a good prospect.

Mr. Twomey. You would like us to include the reason for denial. I
think that is fair.

A
* A. We say your parole is denied and we appear stupid if unable to say
why. In fairness to the man involved at least give us something, a bad
record, etc. The same with “Reserve”. If it is a certain date it is per-
fectly all right but when it is just the word “Reserve” we are sometimes at
a loss to say just when he is to be released. We like to be informative and
pass along all the knowledge we have.

Insofar as obtaining information over a year ago the Deputy Master
and Probation Officers sat down together and we are getting all the in-
formation from the Probation Officers. We have had the records from the
District Attorney’s office and you men come and take the records with you.
We hope the man doesn’t come back in. Those are our records and you are
welcome to take them but if the man should come back we have to start
collecting the material again. We have no reproduction machine.

Mr. Twomey. That is why I suggest that if you people were successful
establishing an Institutional Parole Officer we would have a copy of this
'ormation which is all that we require.
A. As I said we don’t have a machine.
Air. Twomey. I know your limitation

That is why we are seeking to provide funds to hire somebody.

Mr. Twomey. I question whether or not it is feasible under the terms
of the grant of these funds. I feel there is a need for a man in the institu-
tion to work as an Institutional Parole Officer to meet these men when
they come in and develop a case history and background.

A. It is a full-time job.

■ Mr. Twomey. Certainly this Board would be happy to recommend
such an individual and work with you people to try and have the Legisla-
ture give you the money. We can all work in harmony with that respect.

Thomas Ghary, Sheriff, Franklin County.
I can but concur with everything the Commissioners and Sheriffs have

said here today.
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Edward K. Dabrowski, Sheriff-Elect.
In the years that I have been around as a practicing attorney; have

done a great deal of criminal work and have seen this system work from
the point of defense counsel. In the District Attorney’s office and have
seen it apply to releases. I think the system is a good one and think it
works well. Mr. Menton mentioned the difference between Parole Officers
and Probation Officers and I think the Probation Officer is doing a better
job. We are not talking now about rapists; murderers the big boys
from Walpole, we are talking now about people with less than a year to
serve. I think the way the system is now people who know the case better
can make a determination. For example there was an arsonist in
Bedford, and the City Council, of which I was a member, voted a $5OO
ward. The District Attorney’s office made a recommendation that he be
given 7-10 years, and the Judge game him 3-5 years. He was released in
about 6 months and compiled a record of 39 breaks.

Mr. Menton. Did he set any more fires?

A. No, but he is now a guest of the State.
The probationers report to the probation office every two weeks on Dis-

trict Court probation; Superior Court they are given 12 blanks and mail
one in every month and let them know of any change in address.

As I said I feel that the law should be kept on the local level; the system
is working out; it is a good one and I don’t think it ought to be changed.

Mr. Twomey. Is there anybody else who wishes to be heard on this
Resolve?

Mrs. Marie Williams, Chief Probation Officer, Essex County
I have been authorized to represent the County Commissioners of Essex

County and in fairness must tell you that every petition that is presented
by an inmate is processed by the County Commissioners and given to the
Probation Officers for investigation. Also about the Probation Officers
we try to see our people as often as we can. There seems to be some mis-
conception as to what we do. I shall be very happy to answer any ques-
tions you might have about what we do. As far as reporting is concerned
we do see them if possible at their home and work and various places.
We try to do what we can for them

inkMr. Menton. Do you give them b A
A. They do mail those blanks in I

own knowledge of what they are doing
it in most circumstances it is our

We get out and see them at home
and work, sometimes quite frequently depending on the type of super-
vision needed in each case. We feel that they ought to mail in the reports
as being away of their part while on probation. In the paroles that we
recommend we try to co-operate with the institutional authorities, the
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Keeper or Master, and we give diligent supervision. We try to balance
the records of the individual concerning the possibility of rehabilitation,
in the interest of society, and in the interest of a particular person, and
particular circumstances surrounding the offense at the time of sentence.
We do have some of the testimony in the case.

Mr. Menton. Do you supervise parolees from County authorities?
A. When we recommend paroles and they are granted, we do supervise.
Mr. Twomby. Thank you.
Does anybody else wish to be heard? If not I will declare the hearing

|CLOSED.
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